
Agenda 

Camden County Planning Board  
February 19, 2025; 7:00 PM 

Boardroom, Camden Public Library 
Regular Meeting 

  

ITEM I. Call to Order & Welcome 

ITEM II. Consideration of Agenda 

ITEM III. Consideration of Minutes 

 A. Minutes from October 16th, 2024 Meeting 

ITEM IV. Old Business 

ITEM V. New Business 

 A. Major Commercial Site Plan for Mangum Holding, LLC 

ITEM VI. Information from Board and Staff 

ITEM VII. Consider Date of Next Meeting 

ITEM VIII. Adjourn 

 

Page 1 of 37



  1

 
Camden County Planning Board 

October 16th, 2024 at 7:00PM 
Camden County Library - Board Room  

Camden, North Carolina 
 

MINUTES 
 

The regular meeting of the Camden County Planning board was held on October 16th, 2024 at 
7:00PM in the boardroom at the Camden County Library in Camden, North Carolina. 
 
ITEM 1.  CALL TO ORDER & WELCOME       
 
The meeting was called to order by Chairman Steven Bradshaw at 7:00PM. Also Present, Board 
Members: David Bundy, Wayne “Roger” Lambertson, George “Tom” White, and Ray 
Albertson. 
 
Administration Staff Present: Planning Director Amber Curling, Clerk to the Board Lauren Lee. 
 
ITEM II. CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA  
 
Motion to approve the Agenda as presented. 
 
RESULT: [5-0]   PASSED 
MOVER: Ray Albertson  
SECONDER:    George “Tom” White 
AYES: Steven Bradshaw, David Bundy, Ray Albertson, Wayne “Roger” Lambertson, George 
“Tom” White 
ABSENT: Nathan Lilley, Lee Powell  

 
ITEM III. CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES  
 
Motion to approve minutes from July 17th, 2024 and August 21st, 2024 as written. 
 
RESULT: [5-0]   PASSED 
MOVER: David Bundy  
SECONDER:    Ray Albertson 
AYES: Steven Bradshaw, David Bundy, Ray Albertson, Wayne “Roger” Lambertson, George 
“Tom” White 
ABSENT: Nathan Lilley, Lee Powell  

 
ITEM IV. OLD BUSINESS  
 

Page 2 of 37



  2

 
A. UDO 2024-07-131 Text Amendment to the Ordinance Article 151.4 Use Regulations, 

Specifically Event Venue 
Chairman Bradshaw: 

“The Chair will recognize Planning Director Amber Curling” 
 
Amber Curling- Planning Director:  

“On the agenda for tonight is the proposed Text Amendment to Chapter 151 of the 
Camden County Code of Ordinances for the inclusion of the Recreation/Entertainment 
Indoor & Outdoor Use Category to include Event Venue. 
Due to the growing interest of establishing privately owned event venues in the county, 
the request is necessary to accommodate and regulate this use type for public health, 
safety and welfare. On the screen the Unified Development Ordinance includes a 
category for Recreation/Entertainment Indoor and a category for 
Recreation/Entertainment Outdoor.  These do not have language for an event venue 
indoor and/or outdoor. The request would add to the Principal Use Table a Use Category 
of “Recreation/Entertainment Indoor & Outdoor”.  The Indoor and Outdoor Recreation 
Entertainment Use Category includes use types that are entertainment-oriented activities 
that take place indoors and outdoors.  These activities take place in and around structures.  
Example use type is an Event Venue for Private Celebratory Gatherings (Wedding, 
Birthday Party, Retirement Party, Anniversary, and the like) and Other Private Approved 
Events. 
Article 151.4.4.4.M will add specific requirements for the requested Use Category are on 
the screen and included in the packet. Per some discussions I have added to include as #1 
The Purpose and Intent of this Special Use Permit is to regulate new development of an 
event venue as primary or accessory use for a parcel. This is to provide clarity on the 
purpose and intent.  The text amendment is for regulation and requirement of a use which 
does not fit into a category. 
This text amendment includes Article 151.4.5.4 Accessory Use Table the “Event Venue” 
Accessory Use Category, and specific requirements in section Z.  Section Z the specific 
requirements refer back to the requirements of the Principal Use Category requirements. 
Lastly Article 151.10.3 Definition for the term Event Venue. This definition has been 
updated to include specific language to include new uses.  Not to include existing non-
profit organizations which are existing and potentially will be legally non-conforming. 
Motions to recommend approve the Text Amendment to the language of the Camden 
County Code of Ordinance Chapter 151 for clarification to specific section of Articles 
154.4 Use Regulations specifically to include. Recreation/Entertainment Indoor/Outdoor, 
UDO # 2024-07-131, Ordinance # 2024-11-01.” 

Chairman Bradshaw: “Per our earlier discussion, the verbiage added in Red is suffice.” 
 
Chairman Bradshaw: 

“The Chair will open the floor for public comment.  Anyone wishing to speak will have 3 
minutes as indicated on the podium timer.” Since there are no Public Comments I make a 
motion.” 

 

Page 3 of 37



  3

 
“A Motion to recommend approval of Ordinance 2024-11-01, UDO 2024-07-131 the Text 
Amendment to the language of the Camden County Code of Ordinance Chapter 151 for clarification 
to specific sections of Article 151.4 Use Regulations to include Recreation/Entertainment 
Indoor/Outdoor with additional language. 
 

RESULT: [5-0]   PASSED 
MOVER: Steven Bradshaw  
SECONDER:    David Bundy 
AYES: Steven Bradshaw, David Bundy, Ray Albertson, Wayne “Roger” Lambertson, 
George “Tom” White 
ABSENT: Nathan Lilley, Lee Powell  

 
 
ITEM V. NEW BUSINESS   
A. UDO #2024-05-116 Major Site Plan Application for the New Camden County High School 

 
Chairman: 

“The Chair will recognize Planning Director Amber Curling” 
 

Amber Curling: Planning Director: 
“On the agenda tonight is the Major Site Plan Application for Camden County High 
School.  The applicant Timmons Group represented by Kim Hamby is here to provide 
some information answer any questions concerning the application. 
The Option not to hold a Neighborhood Meeting due to the exposure of this project for 
past 10 years.  Adjacent property owner notices for Public Hearing were sent out. 
The parcel is approximately a 60-acre parcel.  Current land use is Vacant.  Adjacent Uses 
include Farmland, woods, residential home, NC Highway 343 North and Sleepy Hollow 
Rd.  The parcel is located in the 1-mile buffer of the Courthouse Township. 
The Zoning District for this parcel is Highway Commercial.  The Zoning District for 
adjoining parcels is Working Lands.  The majority of the parcel is located in Flood Zone 
X. Water and sewer lines are located adjacent to property along NC Hwy 343 N. 
Parcel is in South Camden Fire District. There should be no impact on schools.   
The impact on traffic will be addressed with a traffic analysis by NCDOT. 
Planning Staff recommends the approval of the Camden County High School Major Site 
Plan Application UDO # 2024-05-116 with recommendations in the staff report. Any 
questions?”  
 

David Bundy- Board Member: “When are they going to start?” 
 
Amber Curling- Planning Director: “As soon as you approve this, it will help?” 
 
Brandon Ratliff- BOE Superintendent: “We hope to break ground in December. We think that’s 
a realistic timeline.” 

 

Page 4 of 37



  4

 
Kim Hamby – Timmons Group Representative 

“Good evening, I am very happy to be here.  We have worked with MSTA, Municipal  
School Transportation Assistance, out of Raleigh.  They approve not only the driveway 
entrances, but also the staff needed for drop off and pick up.  They recommended the 
widening of the road, with left and right turn lanes.  Water lines will be relocated due to 
the widening, since they can not be located under roadways. There is an eight-inch and 
twelve-inch pipe that will be moved a few feet.  Installation of new loop of water lines to 
accommodate fire protection and domestic services. Two sewer pumps will be installed 
on this site to accommodate the athletic fields and school. A small pump station for 
concession stands and facilities located at the athletic fields will be pumped to main 
pump station located near the high school, which will then pump to main sewer line on 
NC Hwy 343 North. Prior bids had the athletic fields as alternates, but I am please to tell 
you they are all now included. There is an alternate included, pending budget, for 
artificial-turf fields.  We have provided a little more parking, required is 310 space, we 
are providing 337 spaces for parking.  Last I heard, the school is issuing approximately 
210 student parking passes. We have provided 225-230 student parking spaces.  Initially 
we were not going to extend a road out the back to Sleepy Hollow Road, but had been 
added in partially for additional safety. The entrance will stay gated off. There will be a 
really large detention pond to meet the County Stormwater requirements.” 

 
Ray Albertson- Board Member:  How many Students will it be able to hold?” 
 
Kim Hamby- Timmons Group: “I believe 800 with potential to 920 students” 
 
Chairman Bradshaw: “What is the current size” 
 
Kim Hamby- Timmons Group: “I’ll be honest, I’m not sure, this all happened prior.” 
 
 
Chairman Bradshaw: 

 “Due to no public comments I make a motion, A motion to approve the Camden County High 
School Major Site Plan application UDO# 2024-05-116.” 

 
 
RESULT: [5-0]       PASSED 
MOVER:    Chairman Steven Bradshaw     
SECONDER:  Ray Albertson 
AYES: Steven Bradshaw, David Bundy, Ray Albertson, Wayne “Roger” Lambertson, George 
“Tom” White 
Absent: Nathan Lilley, Lee Powell 

 

 
 

B. UDO #2023-07-064 Major Site Plan Application for the Wharfs Landing Phase 2 

Page 5 of 37



  5

 
 
Chairman Bradshaw:  “The Chair will recognize Planning Director Amber Curling” 
 
Amber Curling – Planning Director:  

“Allied Properties LLC represented by Bissell Professional Group has submitted a 
Preliminary Plat Land Use Application for the Major Conservation Subdivision of Wharfs 
Landing Phase 2. The Neighborhood Meeting was held on August 31, 2021.  The summary 
is included with Staff Report. Technical Review Committee meeting held May 7, 2024 
Vicinity Map the approximate 190 acre site is located in the Wharf Landing Subdivision.  
Access to the proposed Conservation Subdivision is through the existing commercial and 
residential subdivision to the east off US Hwy 17 or Culpepper Rd in the South Mills 
Township. Currently the property is vacant.  The adjacent property uses are Agricultural, 
Vacant lots, Residential Homes, Commercial Shops, and Railroad tracks.   
Zoning District-The proposed parcels are in the Suburban and Rural Residential zoning 
districts.  The surrounding area zoning districts are Highway Commercial, Rural 
Residential, Light Industrial and Working Lands. The parcels of Land are Very High, 
Moderate and Very Low on the Land Suitability Map. The property is not located within 
the Watershed. The one parcel is located in the Wetlands per National Wetlands Inventory. 
The proposed development is not located in the flood plain. Drainage and Environmental 
Assessment- appears the property drains to Joyce Creek.  An Approved Stormwater 
Management Plan will be submitted with Construction Development Phase. The proposed 
preliminary plat application is consistent with the CAMA Future Land Use Map which 
identifies the property as Low Density Residential and Conservation. Comprehensive 
Future Land Use Map which shows the property as Village Residential and Rural 
Residential. Water and sewer are available per capacity agreement with Camden County 
Public Works. The property is served by the South Mills Fire District.  Sheriff’s Office is 
concerned about the public health and safety. In the Technical Review Meeting the 
Sheriff’s office disapproved the subdivision due to lack of resources to support additional 
call volume. Prior to Construction Approval, additional conditions are to be met and are 
included in recommendations: Staff recommends approval of Wharf Landing Conservation 
Subdivision Phase 2 based on current by right zoning with the recommendations in the 
staff report. Are there any questions from the Board for me? (See Attachment A for 
Presentation) 
 

Wayne “Roger” Lambertson – Board Member: “The Technical Review Committee that met 
back in May, 5 of the 7 recommended Disapproval. How do we handle that?” 
 
Amber Curling – Planning Director: “I will say, there is, the water and sewer had some capacity 
issues, but I believe there is an agreement to work it out.  Now for the Fire Department and 
Sheriff, I do believe, possibly, by the time they start building a house. What is it, like a year or 
two?” 
 
Justin Old – Allied Properties LLC: “Eighteen Months is the plan” 
 

Page 6 of 37



  6

 
Amber Curling- Planning Director: “By that time, the Sheriff has awarded deputies that may 
be trained and ready to work. I know Chief Banks had some, Ill have to look back at the TRC, 
had some plans that will help with time response times.  I am hoping that in 18 months, when 
this starts to go, we will be better equipped with Emergency Services.  We now have an EMS 
Director, so hopefully there will be no issues with response times.  I was only given current 
situations, and as of now they do not have it the personnel.”   
 
Wayne “Roger” Lambertson – Board Member: “Well that’s a problem for me, because they 
recommend disapproval, but you are saying we hope there will be no issues. Why do we even 
have these boards if we are not going to listen to them?   
 
Amber Curling- Planning Director: “I am just trying to give you the information I have, but I 
do understand your point. I did include their comments.” 
 
Chairman Bradshaw: “My comment on this, we have already started to address the over-
extension on our water and sewer with the moratorium.  My issue with it was, these are 
grandfathered in since they so far along in their development strategy, but they are tapping on 
the water and sewer. To me the county has already made a commitment to increase those 
facilities and asked for a moratorium on further building.  
 
Wayne “Roger” Lambertson – Board Member: “Is any of that in writing?” 
 
Chairman Bradshaw: “That has to do with the moratorium.” 
 
Wayne “Roger” Lambertson – Board Member: “I understand the moratorium, and agree it is 
one small step towards making this doable.” 
 
Amber Curling- Planning Director: “One of the other issues, was the schools.  But hopefully 
we solved that for some of the future.” 
 
Wayne “Roger” Lambertson – Board Member: “I have said my peace, but I just don’t think it 
is reasonable to approve something betting on a comp.” 
 
George “Tom” White- Board Member: “I know you said start up time would be approximately 
18 months.  Build out of Phase 2, that will stagger over time, what do you estimate the total 
build out of phase 2. 
 
Amber Curling- Planning Director: “Jamie Schwedler will be able to address your question 
better.” 
 
Jamie Schwedler- Attorney for Allied Properties LLC:  

“My name is Jamie Schwelder, I am attorney with Parker Co., I am here on behalf of the 
Applicant, Allied Properties LLC.  This is a request for Administrative Approval of Wharfs 
Landing Phase 2 Preliminary Plat.  Amber did a great job going over the details of this 
proposal.  This subdivision is exempt from the Moratorium because of the time of the filing, 

Page 7 of 37



  7

 
which was determined at the Moratorium hearing. This is an administrative review, which 
means under North Carolina law and your own code. Decisions on approval or denial can 
only be made on the standards in your ordinance. I will go over and show how the Plat 
complies.  I am going to run through those requirements now and answer your question 
Mr. Lambertson.  Those preliminary plat requirements are listed and some are applicable 
and I will demonstrate how the plat complies. There are also requirements that are not 
applicable in section 2.3.20 of your UDO. Mark Bissell, our engineer, has prepared this 
plat under his field, and is prepared to answer details moving forward.  The technical 
requirements are section 2.3.20 – D Standard1:A- Mark Bissell meets all of those 
requirements. Standard 1:B- The preliminary plat complies with the applicable standards 
in Section 47-30 of the North Carolina General Statutes mapping requirements, as well as 
all of the certifications required on sheet one. Standard 1:H- The name of the subdivision 
shall not duplicate or be similar to the name of an existing subdivision in County, staff has 
confirmed that it complies. The Preliminary Plat is required to connect to public water 
supply and wastewater, it has a statement, and that statement appears on Sheet 1.  So all of 
those technical requirements are in place or on sheet 1.   Standards 1:E and 1:J The 
preliminary plat is in substantial conformance with all subdivision requirements.  As you 
see it went through the technical review standards, and I will circle back to your comment 
Mr. Lambertson.  It does pertain to some things we have done since the TRC review came 
back in May.  Standard 1:J the plat complies with all other applicable requirements in this 
Ordinance and the County Code of Ordinances. 1:G All lots shall be served by a NCDOT-
maintained roadway or a right-of-way constructed to and maintained in accordance with 
NCDOT standards.  It is served by Landing Way shown there in yellow.  Going down to 
Dock Landing Loop and Pier Landing Loop and each of the will be NCDOT maintained 
roadways and right of ways constructed internally from the highway into the development.  
These requirements shown on your screen 1:D, 1:F, 1:I, 2 are not applicable to this type of 
development.  We do not need the septic certification since we are tapping into the 
wastewater system, we are grandfathered and worked out an agreement that it is sufficient 
capacity.  The plat complies with standards of any applicable development approvals, there 
weren’t primary approvals this is a Preliminary Plat. It’s not applicable in cases where there 
are areas of environmental concerns and we do not have issues with Special Flood Issues. 
So we have met the all of those standards of review, by review of the items in your agenda. 
The TRC comments that were mentioned by you Mr. Lambertston were made in May of 
2024, earlier the case before the moratorium had gone through. We had a lot of other 
discussions and before we were able to speak in length with staff, including Amber and 
Chuck, about the utility issues. As a product of that, we came up with a phasing schedule 
that we have offered as a part of this case, that breaks our Phase 2 into three different 
phases. That was submitted in August of 2024. Based on that phasing schedule, Amber 
was make her recommendation for approval, since it did meet several concerns that were 
raised.  That phasing schedule means that in Phase 1 we are only recording 60 lots, we will 
not record that plat until January of 2026, and won’t request our first CO before July 2026. 
We are delaying ourselves for the first sixty lots.  The second phase will be 66 lots, and 
will not record the plat until August of 2026.  The first CO wouldn’t be requested until 
February of 2027. So essential we would be 18 months out from now before we even get 
to that July timeframe for the end of phase 1, then an additional 6 months before we close 

Page 8 of 37



  8

 
out phase 2. Even though we are approving the lots to be delivered over time, so those 126 
lots wouldn’t actually come online and need those services until February 1st of 2027. So 
when you see those comments about the sheriff and fire services, those were made in the 
moment as they stood as of May of 2024, but the actual demand will be over almost 2, or 
3 years after those comments were made. So the budgeting and hiring he mentioned in his 
comments, the additional staff will be in place for these emergency services. The additional 
comment and one of the reasons for this approval about the fire was due to the placement 
of an island and how we configured some of the parking.  We have since fixed and 
corrected that issue.  We went back through Amber’s staff and the determination was made 
that it met all of those requirements and satisfied them with this phasing schedule.  That is 
where she was able to make her recommendation for approval.  Our commitment here is 
to make sure we are not over burdening the system.  Both the fire and sheriff, water and 
sewer have already been resolved by agreement.  For those reasons we meet the objective 
standards in your UDO and by state law we are entitled to the Plat approval. We welcome 
any questions, and Mark is here to answer any technical questions.  Perhaps you may want 
to hear from the homeowner present to speak and share their thoughts before you ask those 
questions.  (See attachment B for Presentation) 
 

Chairman Bradshaw: “Anyone else from your group wish to speak?” 
 
Jamie Schwedler- Attorney for Allied Properties LLC: “Not at this time, thank you.” 
 
Chairman Bradshaw: “We will now open the floor for public comments.  When you are called 
please step to the podium, state your name and relevant information.  You will have 3 minutes to 
speak as indicated on the podium timer.  Comments must be addressed from the podium and 
directed to the Board and not the applicant or other members of the audience.” 
 
Albert C. Venn – HOA Treasurer: “My name is Albert Venn, I am part of the Wharf landing HOA 
association.  I have been at it since 2016. I have talked to Justin and Mr. Bissell throughout this 
process, and I have voiced my concerns at the original meeting in 2001 in August. The three things 
were the stormwater, ingress and egress, and the 148 homes they plan on putting back there.  
The plat the attorney, they are using the existing roads we have, that’s normal, but they are all 
feeding into one road.  They are coming out Landing Way, then they show the highlighted the loop 
to Landing Way to Hwy 17.  We have Pier Landing, it’s a big “U”, and I read the thing about the 
analysis, traffic analysis, what is the difference between an analysis and survey, I haven’t figured 
that out yet.  We are worried about that.  We have installed a 60-70k playground on landing way.  
When people get out on landing way, they are going to floor it, they do it now!  Not particularly 
on Landing but on Pier.  We handle ourselves through the police and shaming on Facebook.  The 
other thing I brought up, I read, in Camden County subdivision requirements.  More than 100 
homes there must be 3 entrances. Why do we not have 3?  There are only 2.  There use to be 3 
when Camden Square Associates, there on Keeter Barn they had property.  They decided to build 
on it instead, that could have been a third entrance, and they didn’t do it.  Unfortunately, it land-
locked this property.  I’m not against this, it benefits the existing Wharf Landing neighborhood if 
they build back there.  We all as one unity, then that drops our fees down.  More money, more 
revenue, better things.  Our next goal is a community center for the neighborhood.  However, we 

Page 9 of 37



  9

 
also had to invest 12k into our existing stormwater management, that came out of our pockets. 
There is a great amount of water that is coming from that property onto our stormwater. The 
stormwater is another issue, and we spent money on issues Camden Square Associates left us.  We 
are afraid this is going to be even more intrusive.  Mr. Bissell has assured me that is not going to 
be the case.  
 
Wayne “Roger” Lambertson- Board Member: “Well you sure had me convinced you were against 
it.”  
 
Albert C. Venn – HOA Treasurer: “We welcome it, we really do, we just want it to be right. We 
want it to be safe and right” 
 
Chairman Bradshaw:  I have a question for the attorney now.  This gentleman made a statement 
that there is a requirement per the UDO, you had to have on projects with over 100 homes you 
have to have 3 entrances you only have 2. 
 
Jamie Schwedler- Attorney for Allied Properties LLC: I think this is best explained by Mark and 
he can walk you through the plan.  
 
Chairman Bradshaw:  Well, what is the UDO statement on entrances for housing developments 
over 100. 
 
Mark Bissell- Engineer: Well, the UDO has an exception for Conservation Subdivisions and 
doesn’t apply. Secondly, if you have topographic or land ownership issues it doesn’t apply. Those 
are the exception. Even so, you get credit for future connectivity roads, and we provide two, so we 
are actually getting credit for four connections.  
 
Chairman Bradshaw: “Where are your future connectivity roads, I don’t see it.   
 
Mark Bissell- Engineer: “There is one here that could connect to Culpepper Road and the second 
is here to connect to the south.”  
 
Chairman Bradshaw: “The idea of having three entrances seems like a good idea for a development 
this size, and if the UDO requires three and you say its exempt.”   
 
Mark Bissell- Engineer: “We actually spoke with the County Attorney and he agreed to it.”  
 
Chairman Bradshaw: “Amber can you confirm?” 
 
Amber Curling- Planning Director: “If he had a conversation with the Attorney, then that 
discussion was kept between them.  All I did was mention the entrances in my TRC comments. I 
do not believe the UDO states they are exempt, but there are some exceptions. Down in the 
exception it pertains to environmental and situational because it’s land locked.”   
 

Page 10 of 37



  10

 
Chairman Bradshaw: “However, the second part of that gentleman’s statement, they had a back 
exit but they decided to build more homes.” 
 
Justin Old – Allied Properties LLC: “He’s talking about the previous owner.” 
 
Chairman Bradshaw: “Well I understand that, but if you land locked it by your own design.  I kind 
of have an issue with that.”  
 
Justin Old – Allied Properties LLC: “Regardless, the ordinance is exempt in this zoning.”  
 
Amber Curling-Planning Director: “Would you like for me to pull the Ordinance up?” 
Chairman Bradshaw: “We have two different comments, one saying exempt and another saying it 
is not.” 
 
Jamie Schwedler- Attorney for Allied Properties LLC: “It’s section 6.2.3.J – its inapplicable when 
3 access points are not required when it’s a conservation subdivision.” 
 
Justin Old- Allied Properties LLC:  We sat with Erin, the County Manager, and the County 
Attorney.  They all agreed after the TRC meeting that it was not applicable. 
 
Jamie Schwedler- Attorney for Allied Properties LLC: “Section 5.7.3 D 1, and I quote, 
Development configured as a conservation subdivision shall be exempted from the following 
standards: 1. Section 6.2.3.J, Development Entry Points.” It’s two different parts of the code, one 
requires it and the other exempts it.” 
 
Wayne “Roger” Lambertson- Board Member: “See that’s a major concern of mine too. The only 
two entrances and exits.  In an emergency, say there is a massive fire, you will have people flying 
out there on one road.” 
 
Mark Bissell- Engineer: “Let me just say one thing about the roads, all these roads are maintained 
by NCDOT, a part of the state system.  The are well under their design capacity, and the majority 
of the traffic will come down Landing Way, and it doesn’t have any existing any lots fronting it.  
There is no safety issue there.   
 
Chairman Bradshaw: “The next question I had was the stormwater.  It seems like the stormwater 
plan from the first part from a previous developer. Does this new stormwater plan address the 
current issues of your water draining onto their property?”  
 
Mark Bissell- Engineer: “It does.  Let me explain how.  First of all this a conservation subdivision, 
so it has fifty percent open space, 95 acres of open space. One of the beauties of that is you can 
have the ability to oversize stormwater facilities. We have this lake, that is serving as on oversized 
stormwater retention facility. We will be designing and managing stormwater to the 100-year 
stormwater standards, which is well in excess of what the UDO requires.  We have already pre-
development analysis and we have identified where all the water is going from the site now.  We 
provided that model to your consulting engineer, and they have approved it.  The UDO then 

Page 11 of 37



  11

 
requires that it retain the stormwater and slowly release it, so that the water is leaving the site at a 
lower rate to different locations. I actually think this will be a benefit to the existing development.” 
 
David Bundy- Board Member: “How big is that pond?” 
 
Mark Bissell- Engineer: “I don’t recall, but I believe it is a 15-20 acre pond.” 
 
Ray Albertson – Board Member: “Is it wet or dry pond.” 
 
Mark Bissell- Engineer: “It will be a wet pond.” 
 
Joshua L. Caughran – Wharf Landing Secretary: “Good Evening, I am a part of the HOA at Wharf 
Landing, the stormwater he was referring to and what we put into it.  If you follow from Landing 
Way into Pier Landing, there is an existing storm drain pipe that comes from the back already.  
The ditches and stormwater procedure that comes from this property behind is filtering into the 
neighborhood.  It is causing a lot of issues through the neighborhood and personnel that are living.  
Ourselves the Wharf Landing HOA has had to put in over twelve thousand to fix this one area. We 
are also going to have to do the same in front portion as well, with the water that is running through 
and going through the ditches.  So, my question, in regards to the stormwater, the ditches that 
already exist will they be redone to address the stormwater issue we have now or will they be fixed 
to drain to Joyce Creek?  Next question with the egress and ingress, there are two exits that lead 
into one main road.  There are two other entry/exits potentials, but how can you have two potential 
exits when the land is owned by someone else.  The last thing is we mentioned the Fire Department 
already. Response times are slow, I am not worried about the amount of personnel, but the response 
time.  It’s all volunteer, I have spoken to one of the South Mills firefighters, and he is not worried 
about the amount of volunteers but facilities and location.  
 
Chairman Bradshaw:  Thank you, and let’s go back to the Stormwater issue again. He referring to 
a ditch that has a constant flow and causing erosion.  How is that being addressed now?” 
 
Mark Bissell- Engineer: “I do not understand that…How is it being addressed?” 
 
Chairman Bradshaw: “He stated, well with your project fix the issue.  Are you still going to have 
a majority of the water flowing out through the ditching system along the edge?  If we have a 
problem, is what you are going to do fix it or make it worse? 
 
Mark Bissell- Engineer: “Well the final stormwater design hasn’t been completed yet. Once we 
get the preliminary plat approval.  The next step is to do the post development runoff analysis and 
the final grading plan. Those plans then go back to the County Engineer for their approval.  We 
are still in the early stages of the stormwater design and we have a ways to go. We will do what 
we can to address that situation. 
 
Chairman Bradshaw: “I have to admit, you have a propensity of huge water storage in that pond.” 
 
Mark Bissell – Engineer: That storage pond is the retention for it and is slowly released 

Page 12 of 37



  12

 
 
Ray Alberston – Board Member:  Is Phase 1 going to go into this pond?  
 
Mark Bissell-Engineer: “Yes, if you see the phasing line will be constructing about half of that 
pond at a time.” 
 
Ray Alberston – Board Member: “So it will help their development” 
 
Mark Bissell-Engineer: “It should” 
 
Justin Old – Allied Properties LLC: “Right now they just have a ditch.” 
 
Chairman Bradshaw: “So right now all the rained lands drain to this one ditch and not controlled. 
So I guess my, this stormwater system is going to hold more water on station, which should 
alleviate some of the rapid runoff.” 
 
Justin Old – Allied Properties LLC: “Yes, we have to hold it and release it at a certain rate. Right 
now, it goes where mother nature wants it to. That is a state and county law, we have to obey.  
 
Chairman Bradshaw: “We already had a development, and the home owners have had to increase 
or improve their stormwater, so I hear what you are saying and I agree with that, but apparently 
what someone did before isn’t working.” 
 
Justin Old – Allied Properties LLC: “I will point out one thing Mark hit on.  The Ordinance 
requires I think ten years stormwater we have to retain, we are designing this to retain for 100 
years storm, because its more significant rainfall. Back to the ordinance and the front part, which 
was done 20 years ago, this wasn’t even a thing.  Look at all the problems they have. 
 
Mark Bissell-Engineer: “I don’t know what the numbers are until we get the analysis done, but my 
guess is the pond will handle a lot more than expected or anticipated.  
 
Chairman Bradshaw: “I understand. I just want to make sure in the planning stage now, are we 
addressing the issues we are having now and will they be incorporated in the plan.  What I am 
hearing is yes.  
 
George “Tom” White- Board Member: “I was going to make a comment about the EMS services, 
about the response time.  The EMS service is under contract, the Pasquotank/Camden EMS and 
based out of Elizabeth City.  You have three ambulances stationed throughout the county, but it 
depends on the time of day.  If they are out on a call, then one comes from Elizabeth City, which 
is why the response time may take so long. Camden County is beginning their own EMS service, 
which I believe starts in February.  The service will then be by Camden County, so hopefully the 
response time will be better.” 
 
Chairman Bradshaw: “Nobody else has any comments or questions from the floor?” 
 

Page 13 of 37



  13

 
Wayne “Roger” Lambertson- Board Member: “I want to address my earlier comments.  I would 
feel a lot better about some of the information that was said was in writing.  With this schedule 
there should be adequate sheriff, adequate fire, school bus drivers, and police, but it’s not. And 
why, because the people that are saying disapprove are covering their behinds.  If we approve and 
something happens, then the sheriff can stand up and say I told them not to do it.  The fire 
department can say, I told them not to do it. Who are they gonna back to?  Steven Bradshaw, you 
are the Chairman who approved it. But still I would feel better if we had somebody willing to 
project that this would be ok in 18 months, which you’re not going to get.” 
 
Chairman Bradshaw: “As we go into the voting stage, just remember that if all the checks are in 
the box are made, we have to approve the Plat.  My planning staff has recommended approval and 
for the most part boxes have been checked. Based on what I heard tonight I make a Motion to 
recommend approval of the Preliminary Plat Subdivision application UDO 2023-07-064 of the 
Wharf Landing Phase II Conservation Subdivision 
 

RESULT: [4-1]    PASSED 
MOVER: Steven Bradshaw  
SECONDER: David Bundy 
AYES: Steven Bradshaw, David Bundy, Ray Albertson, George “Tim” White  
NAYES: Wayne “Roger” Lambertson 

ABSENT:  Nathan Lilly & Lee Powell 

 
ITEM VI. INFORMATION FROM BOARD AND STAFF      
None. 
 
ITEM VII.   DATE OF NEXT MEETING      
The next meeting is pending an Agenda 
 
ITEM VIIII. ADJOURN           
Motion to adjourn. 
 
RESULT: [5-0] PASSED 
MOVER: Ray Alberston  
SECONDER:  Steven Bradshaw  
AYES: Steven Bradshaw, David Bundy, Ray Albertson, Wayne “Roger” Lambertson, George 
“Tom” White 
NAYES: 
ABSENT: Nathan Lilley & Lee Powell  

 

 
 

Page 14 of 37



` 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
UDO # 2024-08-137 

Major Commercial Site Plan for  
Mangum Holding, LLC  

 
 
PROJECT INFORMATION 
 
File Reference: UDO# 2024-08-137 
Project Name:  Mangums at Camden ECO-PARK  
 
PIN:  01.7071.00.58.8250.0000 
 
Applicant:          Mangum Holdings, LLC 
Address:  P.O. Box 7177 

Wilson NC 27895 
 

Phone:  252-230-8707 
Email:  lukem@mangumsinc.com 
 
Agent for Applicant:   
Steve Oliviero, Bartlett Engineering & Surveying, PC 
Address: 1906 Nash St. N., Wilson NC 27893 
           
Phone:  252-399-0704 
Email:  steve@bartletteng.com  
 
Current Owner of Record: Mangum Holding, 
LLC 
 

 Application Received: 8/29/2024 
By:  Hunter Munro, Planning 

 
Application Fee Paid:   Yes 
Completeness of Application: See Below 
 
Documents received:  
A. Major Site Plan Application  
B. Commercial Site Plan/Construction Plan 
C. NCDEQ Stormwater Permit SW7201109 
D. NC E&S Letter of Approval 
E. NCDEQ General Permit NCG01-2024-3477 
F. Property Owner Consent Form from 

Camden County 
 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

REQUEST:  The request is for approval of Major Commercial Site Plan Application for Mangum 
Holding LLC to be located at 1001 Eco Park Drive, South Mills NC 27976, at the Camden Commerce 
Park. 

 
Description/Location: The proposed site will be a warehouse/freight movement type business 
located in the Camden County Commerce Park. The site constitutes the construction of a 10k square-
foot storage/office building, associated ABC stone parking/yard and improvements, a future 60k square-
foot warehouse with additional ABC stone parking/yard and SMI Wetpond.  

 

Page 15 of 37



` 

VICINITY MAP 
 

 

Virginia 

Great Dismal Swamp 

South Mills 
1-Mile Buffer 

Camden Eco Park 

Page 16 of 37



` 

 

Camden Eco Park 

Great Dismal Swamp 

Site Location 

Page 17 of 37



` 

ZONING MAP 
 

 

Highway Commercial 

Highway Commercial 

Rural Residential 

Working Lands 

Planned Development 

Planned Development 

RR 

Light Industrial 

Page 18 of 37



` 

    FLOOD ZONE MAP 
 

 

 

X 

Zone AE 

Zone A 

Zone X 

Page 19 of 37



` 

DETAIL MAP 
 

 

Temporary 
Construction 
Trailer 

Future 
Stormwater 
Wetpond 

10,000 Sq Ft 
Office Building 

60,000 Sq Ft 
Warehouse 

Proposed 
ABC Stone 

Page 20 of 37



` 

SITE DATA 
 
Size of Lot:   Approximately 10.01 acres 
Flood Zone:    X 
Zoning District(s):  Highway Commercial 
Existing Land Uses:  Planned Commercial 
Drainage District:  South Mills 
 
 
Adjacent Zoning & Uses: 
 North South  East West 
Zoning Planned 

Development  
Highway 
Commercial 

Highway 
Commercial 

Working Lands 

Use & size Camden 
Commerce Park 

US17, vacant land Vacant land US17 & Dismal Swamp 
State Park 

 
INFRASTRUCTURE & COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
Water: Main Water line adjacent to property along Eco Park Blvd 
Sewer:  Main sewer line adjacent to property along Eco Park Blvd 
Fire District:  South Mills Fire Department 
Schools:   No impact on schools.   
Traffic:  Estimated minimal impact on traffic 
 
PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION:    Planning Staff recommends approval of Commercial 
Site Plan for Mangum Holding LLC with the following recommendations: 
 

1. Updated set of plans showing any additional information required by Planning Board 
2. Obtain required Building Permits for the construction of New Building 
3. Include any easement for public/private infrastructure as needed. 
4. The applicant must strictly abide by all requirements of the Unified Development Ordinance of 

Camden County, North Carolina, and must also strictly comply with all other local, state, and 
federal ordinances, laws, rules and regulations as one or more ordinances, laws, rules and 
regulations may apply to this development. 

5.  

Page 21 of 37



01.7071.00.58.8250.0000

Page 22 of 37



Page 23 of 37



 

Page 24 of 37



 

Page 25 of 37



 

Page 26 of 37



Page 27 of 37



Page 28 of 37



Page 29 of 37



Page 30 of 37



Page 31 of 37



 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
November 7, 2024 

 
LETTER OF APPROVAL 

 
 

Mangum Holdings, LLC 

2811 Yukon Rd. S. 

Wilson, NC 27893 

 

RE: Project Name: Mangums at Camden Eco Park 

 Application ID: PA-006811 

Permit Number: CAMDE-2025-0102 

Acres Approved: 9.6 Acres 

County: Camden    

City: South Mills Township  

Address: 1001 Eco Park Blvd.     

River Basin: Pasquotank       

Stream Classification: C: Aquatic Life, Secondary Contact Recreation, Fresh water  

Plan Type: New Plan – Commercial Phase 1 +/-10,000 SF Storage-Office Building; Phase 2 

60,000 SF Warehouse each with Associated Infrastructure (Sediment Basin Conversion to 

SCM-Wet Pond) 

 

Dear Mangum Holdings, LLC, 

 

This office has reviewed the subject erosion and sedimentation control plan. We hereby issue this 

Letter of Approval.  Any modifications required for approval are listed in the body of the email that 

accompanied this attached letter.  The enclosed Certificate of Approval must be posted at the job 

site. This plan approval shall expire three (3) years following the date of approval, if no land-

disturbing activity has been undertaken, as is required by Title 15A NCAC 4B .0129. 

 

As of April 1, 2019, all new construction activities not explicitly exempt are required to complete 

and submit an electronic Notice of Intent (eNOI) form requesting a Certificate of Coverage (COC) 

under the NCG010000 Construction General Permit.  After the form is reviewed and found to be 

complete, you will receive a link with payment instructions for the annual permit fee.  After the fee 

is processed, you will receive the COC.  As the Financially Responsible Party shown on the FRO form 

submitted for this project, you MUST obtain the COC prior to commencement of any land disturbing 

activity.  The eNOI form may be accessed at deq.nc.gov/NCG01.   

  

Page 32 of 37

https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/energy-mineral-and-land-resources/stormwater/stormwater-program/npdes-construction-program


 
 
Letter of Approval 
Mangum Holdings, LLC 
11/7/2024 
Page 2 of 4 
 

 

 
 

Please direct questions about the eNOI form to the Stormwater Program staff in the Raleigh central 

office.  If the owner/operator of this project changes in the future, the new responsible party must 

obtain a new COC.  

 

Title 15A NCAC 4B .0118(a) and the NCG01 permit require that the following documentation be 

kept on file at the job site: 

 

1. The approved E&SC plan as well as any approved deviation. 

2. The NCG01 permit and the COC, once it is received. 

3. Records of inspections made during the previous 12 months. 

 

Also, this letter gives the notice required by G.S. 113A-61.1(a) of our right of periodic inspection to 

ensure compliance with the approved plan. 

 

North Carolina's Sedimentation Pollution Control Act is performance-oriented, requiring protection 

of existing natural resources and adjoining properties. If, following the commencement of this 

project, the erosion and sedimentation control plan is inadequate to meet the requirements of the 

Sedimentation Pollution Control Act of 1973 (North Carolina General Statute 113A-51 through 66), 

this office may require revisions to the plan and implementation of the revisions to ensure 

compliance with the Act. 

 

Acceptance and approval of this plan is conditioned upon your compliance with Federal and State 

water quality laws, regulations, and rules. In addition, local city or county ordinances or rules may 

also apply to this land-disturbing activity. This approval does not supersede any other permit or 

approval. 

 

Please note that this approval is based in part on the accuracy of the information provided in the 

Financial Responsibility Form and on the plan, which you provided. You are requested to file an 

amended form if there is any change in the information included on the form.  

 

Your cooperation is appreciated. 

  
Sincerely,  
  
   
  
 
Ginger Y. Turner, PE for 
Samir Dumpor, PE 
Regional Engineer 
Land Quality Section  
 

Page 33 of 37

https://deq.nc.gov/about/divisions/energy-mineral-and-land-resources/stormwater/stormwater-program/stormwater-program-contacts


 
 
Letter of Approval 
Mangum Holdings, LLC 
11/7/2024 
Page 3 of 4 
 

 

 
 

General Comments 
 

1. This permit allows for a land disturbance, as called for on the application plan, not to exceed 9.6 

acres.  Exceeding that acreage will be a violation of this permit and would require a revised plan and 

additional application fee.  Any addition in impervious surface, over that already noted on the approved 

plan, would also require a revised plan to verify the appropriateness of the erosion control measures and 

stormwater retention measures (NCGS 113A-54.1(b)).  

2. Additional measures may be required - the applicant is responsible for the control of sediment on-site.  If 

the approved erosion and sedimentation control measures prove insufficient, the applicant must take those 

additional steps necessary to stop sediment from leaving this site (NCGS 113A-57(3); 15A NCAC 

4B .0115).  Each sediment storage device must be inspected after each storm event (NCGS 113A54.1(e)).  

Maintenance and/or clean out is necessary anytime the device is at 50% capacity.  All sediment storage 

measures will remain on site and functional until all grading and final landscaping of the project is 

complete (15A NCAC 04B .0113).  

 
3. The applicant is responsible for obtaining any and all permits and approvals necessary for the development 

of this project prior to the commencement of this land disturbing activity.  This could include our agency’s 

Stormwater regulations and the Division of Water Resources’ enforcement requirements within Section 

401 of the Clean Water Act, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers’ jurisdiction of Section 404 of the Clean Water 

Act, the Division of Coastal Management’s CAMA requirements, the Division of Solid Waste Management’s 

landfill regulations, the Environmental Protection Agency and/or The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 

jurisdiction of the Clean Water Act, local County or Municipalities’ ordinances, or others that may be 

required.  This approval cannot supersede any other permit or approval; however, in the case of a Cease-

and-Desist Order from the Corps of Engineers, that Order would only apply to wetland areas.  All highlands 

would still have to be in compliance with the N.C. Sedimentation Pollution Control Act. 

 
4. If any area on site falls within the jurisdiction of Section 401 or 404 of the Clean Water Act, the applicant is 

responsible for compliance with the requirements of the Division of Water Resources (DWR), the Corps of 

Engineers and the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) respectively.  Any erosion control measures 

that fall within jurisdictional wetland areas must be approved by the aforementioned agencies prior to 

installation.  The Land Quality Section must be notified of a relocation of the measures in question to the 

transition point between the wetlands and the uplands to assure that the migration of sediment will not 

occur.  If that relocation presents a problem or contradicts any requirements of either DWR, the Corps, or 

the EPA, it is the responsibility of the applicant to inform the Land Quality Section regional office so that an 

adequate contingency plan can be made to assure sufficient erosion control remains on site.  Failure to do 

so will be considered a violation of this approval (NCGS 113A-54.1(b)). 

 
5. Any off-site borrow and waste required for this project must come from a site with an approved erosion 

control plan, a site regulated under the Mining Act of 1971, or a landfill regulated by the Division of Solid 

Waste Management.  Trash/debris from demolition activities or generated by any activities on site must be 

disposed of at a facility regulated by the Division of Solid Waste Management or per Division of Solid Waste 

Management or Division of Water Resources rules and regulations. [15A NCAC 4B .0110] 

 

Page 34 of 37



 
 
Letter of Approval 
Mangum Holdings, LLC 
11/7/2024 
Page 4 of 4 
 

 

 
 

6. A graveled construction entrance must be located at each point of access and egress available to 

construction vehicles during the grading and construction phases of this project.  Access and egress from 

the project site at a point without a graveled entrance will be considered a violation of this 

approval.  Routine maintenance of the entrances is critical (113A-54.1(b)).  

 
7. Because sediment traps and basins are shown on the plan as the primary sedimentation and erosion 

control devices on this project, it is necessary that the traps and basins and their collection systems be 

installed before any other grading takes place on site, and that every structure that receives more than one 

acre of drainage is built so that each dewaters only from the surface (NCG010000).  If that proves to be 

impractical, a revised plan must be submitted and approved that addresses erosion and sediment control 

needs during the interim period until the traps and basins are fully functioning (113A-54.1(b)). 

 
8. Any and all existing ditches on this project site are assumed to be left undisturbed by the proposed 

development unless otherwise noted.  The removal of vegetation within any existing ditch or channel is 

prohibited unless the ditch or channel is to be regraded with side slopes of 2 horizontal to 1 vertical or less 

steep (15A NCAC 04B .0124 (d)).  Bank slopes may be mowed but stripping of vegetation is considered new 

earth work and is subject to the same erosion control requirements as new ditches (NCGS 113A52(6)). 

 

9. As a condition of the NPDES General Stormwater Permit (NCG010000), the financially responsible party 

shall comply with the NCG01 Ground Stabilization and Materials Handling requirements that became 

effective April 1, 2019.  The NCG01 Ground Stabilization and Materials Handling standard detail can be 

printed from the deq.nc.gov/NCG01 website.  

 

10. As a condition of the NPDES General Stormwater Permit (NCG010000), the financially responsible party 

shall comply with the NCG01 Self-Inspection, Recordkeeping and Reporting requirements that became 

effective April 1, 2019.  The NCG01 Self-Inspection, Recordkeeping and Reporting standard details can be 

printed from the deq.nc.gov/NCG01 website.  

 

11. As a part of routine monitoring of the approved land-disturbing activity, the financially responsible party 

shall assure inspections of the area covered by the approved plan after each phase of the plan has been 

completed and after establishment of temporary ground cover in accordance with North Carolina General 

Statute 113A-54.1(e).  

 

12. The NCG01 has a $120 yearly fee and our office often receives closure inspection requests days prior to 

yearly NCG01 fee payment due dates.  Be advised the project requires a closure inspection report by 

DEMLR prior to filing the Notice of Termination (NOT) to terminate NCG01 coverage.  The closure 

inspection should not be requested until after the site has achieved full vegetative stabilization and 

measures have been removed.  The removal of temporary ESC measures, including basins, requires prior 

approval. Often, a full growing season is necessary between initial seeding/mulching and removal of 

measures.  Please plan your construction accordingly to avoid contacting our office prematurely for a 

closure inspection.  Also be advised you may be asked for representative site pictures prior to a closure 

inspection.  

 

 

Page 35 of 37



Certificate of Coverage

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY


DIVISION OF ENERGY, MINERAL, AND LAND RESOURCES


GENERAL PERMIT NO. NCG010000


NC Reference No. NCG01-2024-3477

Certificate of Coverage No. NCC243477


STORMWATER DISCHARGES


NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM


In compliance with the provision of North Carolina General Statute 143-215.1, other lawful standards and regulations
promulgated and adopted by the North Carolina Environmental Management Commission, and the Federal Water

Pollution Control Act, as amended,


Mangum Holdings, LLC


is hereby authorized to discharge stormwater associated with CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES to surface waters of North
Carolina from a site located at:

Mangums at Camden Eco Park

1001 Eco Park Blvd.


South Mills

Camden County


in accordance with the effluent limitations, monitoring requirements, and other conditions set forth in N.C. General Permit
No. NCG010000.

This Certificate of Coverage is affiliated with E&SC Plan Project No. CAMDE-2025-0102


This Certificate of Coverage shall become effective 11/12/2024.

This Certificate of Coverage shall remain in effect until rescinded or expired. 

This Certificate of Coverage will expire on the anniversary of its effective date unless it is renewed by payment of the
annual administration and compliance fee.


      

                                                                                                                                                                          

William E. Vinson, Jr., PE, CPESC, CPM, Interim Director
Division of Energy, Mineral, and Land Resources 

By the Authority of the Environmental Management Commission

Page 36 of 37



Page 37 of 37


	I. Call to Order & Welcome
	II. Consideration of Agenda
	III. Consideration of Minutes
	A. Minutes from October 16th, 2024 Meeting
	October 16th, 2024 Meeting Minutes


	IV. Old Business
	V. New Business
	A. Major Commercial Site Plan for Mangum Holding, LLC
	Staff Report
	Major Site  Plan Application
	Major Commercial Site Plans
	NCDEQ_Stromwater Permit SW7201109
	NC E&S Letter of Approval
	NCDEQ General Permit NCG01-2024-3477
	Property Owner Consent Form from Camden County


	VI. Information from Board and Staff
	VII. Consider Date of Next Meeting
	VIII. Adjourn

		2024-11-07T06:08:55-0800
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com




